
 
IMLAY CITY 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
150 N. MAIN STREET 

IMLAY CITY, MI 48444 
                  

MEETING SEPTEMBER 11, 2023 
5:35 P.M. 

 
Walter Bargen, Chair Justin Shattuck, Board Member  
Kelly Villanueva, Vice-Chair  Steve Robbins, Board Member  
Kim Jorgenson, Secretary-Treasurer Neil Docherty, Board Member  
Stu Davis, Treasurer Joi Kempf, Mayor 

 
A G E N D A 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. ROLL CALL 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
6. CORRESPONDANCE (pgs 3-7) 

a. Chamber of Commerce Special Event Permit – Merchant Trick or Treating 10/21/23 
b. Thank you note Bob Marshall Band 

 
7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (pgs 9-12) 

Regular Meeting, August 14, 2023 
 

8. FINANCIAL REPORTS – August 2023 (pgs 13-19) 
a. DDA Expenditure Report  
b. Check Register Report  
c. DDA Credit Card Statement  
d. Balance Sheet 

 
9. OLD BUSINESS  

a. DDA Issued Emails Addresses (pgs 21-23) 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS  
a. EV Charging Station (pgs 25-46) 
b. 2023 Summer Concert Series Report (pgs 47-49) 
c. Professional Services - Community Assessment Proposals (pgs 51-95) 
d. @150 POP Application – Collection Connection LLC (pgs 97-118) 

 
11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT (pgs 119-121) 
12.  
13. FARM MARKET MANAGER REPORT (pg 122) 

 
14. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted by: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director                                                                 Posted:  September 1, 2023 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM  
Correspondence 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DATE: September 11, 2023 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

 

Background: Items included are for informational purposes only. 

 

Items Attached: Chamber of Commerce Special Event Permit 
 Thank you letter from Bob Marshall Band 
 
 
Action Needed: None 

 

 

 

   
 

   
 

 

 











 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 



 

 
DDA REGULAR RE-SCHEDULED MEETING MINUTES – AUGUST 16, 2023 

PAGE 1 
 

Draft posted 8/26/2023 
 

IMLAY CITY 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
Rescheduled Regular Meeting  

August 16, 2023 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

A regular meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday August 16, 2023, at the 
Imlay City Hall, 150 North Main Street, Imlay City MI 48444. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Chairman Bargen called the meeting to order at 5:35 pm 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL – Executive Director Malzahn called the roll: 
 Present: Walter Bargen, Kim Jorgenson, Stu Davis, Justin Shattuck, Steve Robbins, Neil Docherty, Mayor Joi 

Kempf 
 Absent: Kelly Villanueva (excused) 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 MOTION by Davis, support by Shattuck to approve the agenda with the addition of item 10f. City Issued 

Emails 
 All in Favor 7 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none 

 
6. CORRESPONDENCE - none 
 
7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Informational Meeting July 10, 2023, Regular Meeting July 10, 2023, Special Meeting July 31, 2023 
 MOTION by Davis, support by Robbins to approve the minutes as presented. 
 All in Favor 7 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  
 
8. FINANCIAL REPORTS – July 2023 
  a. DDA Expenditure Report - $20, 151.04 
  b. Balance Sheet - $232,152.80 
  c. Check Register Report - $10,245.55 

Director Malzahn presented the financials through July 31, 2023 drawing attention to GL# 248-705-
000-830-000 and the $3,050.72 journal entry for liability insurance that was administratively applied 
to the DDA accounting records by City Treasurer Sawicki-Franz.  Malzahn informed the board that all 
expenditures must come through the director’s office prior to the funds being withdrawn and that the 
proper procedure was not followed for this expense.  Chair Bargen will request a meeting with 
appropriate parties to discuss procedure and negotiate the liability expense. 
 
 



 

 
DDA REGULAR RE-SCHEDULED MEETING MINUTES – AUGUST 16, 2023 

PAGE 2 
 

 
9. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Bike Rack Purchase 
             The board reviewed pricing options on the previously presented pictures of bike rack ideas.  Kim 

Jorgenson presented an additional option that she photographed in Cheboygan.  The board agreed to 
table this item again until further research and pricing options could be obtained. 

NO BOARD ACTION TAKEN  
 
b. Portable Sound System 

             Stu Davis and Director Malzahn presented sound system specs and pricing for a Behringer portable 
speaker with microphone, stand and cables from Sweetwater.  These items are recommended and 
used at the Fairgrounds currently. 

MOTION by Davis, support by Kempf to approve the purchase of sound system equipment as presented 
in an amount not to exceed $1,200. 

 Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Kempf, Shattuck, Bargen, Jorgenson, Robbins, Docherty 
      NAYS – none 

MOTION CARRIED 7/0 
  

10. NEW BUSINESS 
a.  City Fee Schedule (DDA related fees) 

The DDA was asked to review fees associated with DDA activities that will be included in the master 
fee scheduled being published by the city.  Fees include Farm Market Vendors, and Billboard 
Sponsorship. 

MOTION by Davis, support by Jorgenson to approve the fee schedule as discussed. 
All in Favor 7 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
b. Streetscape Maintenance Contract Renewal 

Director Malzahn recapped the request presented during Monday’s discussion-only meeting made 
by Cindy Murray from Greenscape Solutions.   She noted that the fall season prior to spring 
planting is the time for contractors to work with growers, selecting planting materials and 
quantities needed.  The bid RFP issued in 2023 allows for up to three negotiated 1-year renewals.  
Greenscape is asking for a $2,000 increase for the 2024 planting season for the same scope of 
work that is in the current contract. 

MOTION by Davis, support by Robbins to approve a 1-year contract extension with Greenscape Solutions 
in the amount of $42,000. 

 Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Robbins, Kempf, Shattuck, Bargen, Jorgenson, Docherty 
      NAYS – none 

MOTION CARRIED 7/0 
 
c.  2023-2024 Landscape Projects  

The Board reviewed two proposals submitted by Greenscape Solutions.  The first was for tree 
plantings in 5 areas of the downtown district for $2950 + $350 weed barrier.  

             MOTION by Davis support by Jorgenson to purchase and install 4 trees by Greenscape Solutions.  
Motion withdrawn after further budget discussion. 
 
The second proposal was for plantings in 3 bump-out area along Depot Drive, they include 
hydrangeas and hostas planted with the existing lavender plants and a mix of Arborvitaes and 
hydrangeas along the rail fencing on the east side of the train viewing platform. 

MOTION by Davis, support by Kempf to approve the landscape improvements in the Depot Drive area 
bump-out and rail fencing areas as proposed by Greenscape Solutions in the amount of $1750. 



 

 
DDA REGULAR RE-SCHEDULED MEETING MINUTES – AUGUST 16, 2023 

PAGE 3 
 

 Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Kempf, Bargen, Jorgenson, Robbins, Docherty  
      NAYS – Shattuck 

MOTION CARRIED 6/1 
 

d.  Community Center Grant Opportunity  
Director Malzahn presented a Leo Community Center Grant opportunity funded by the State of 
Michigan with an August 31, 2023 submission deadline.  Municipalities, especially those in 
underserved communities, are encouraged to apply for up to $2.5 million dollar projects for re-
development or new construction of facilities designated for recreation activities.  Data and feedback 
from current vendors and market shoppers indicates a need for a pavilion covering over Farmer’s 
Market, since the old fire hall location space will be sold and redeveloped for another purpose.  
Discussions with the Senior Center director and other non-profits who provide free activities in the 
downtown area were overwhelmingly positive in support of this project requesting that the proposed 
structure be utilized as a multi-purposed recreational facility. 

MOTION by Shattuck support by Davis to move forward with the community center grant application. 
All in Favor 7 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
MOTION by Robbins support by Jorgenson to approve the proposal submitted by Spicer Group in the 
amount of $6,000 for community grant application assistance. 
Roll Call:  AYES – Robbins, Jorgenson, Shattuck, Docherty, Bargen, Davis, Kempf 

      NAYS – none 
MOTION CARRIED 7/0 
 
e.  Brick Paver Removal Project  

Mayor Kempf has requested that the failing brick paver locations in the business district be 
removed and replaced with stamped concrete to alleviate the trip hazards that are present due 
to uneven surfaces.  Director Malzahn has received complaints asking for a solution to the 
problem and has forwarded them to the DPW for investigation.  A bid spec sheet was developed 
by DPW Supervisor Priehs, but no proposals have been received from contractors in recent 
attempts to get pricing by the DDA.  Discussion was held by the board over whose responsibility 
the repairs were and that the DDA budget cannot support a project of this scope.  The board 
would request that the city prioritize and oversee the project with some possible funding 
assistance by the DDA.  Mayor Kempf will request a meeting with City Manager Horton, DPW 
Supervisor Priehs and Director Malzahn to discuss further. 

NO BOARD ACTION TAKEN  
 

f.  DDA City Issued E-mail Addresses 
Justin Shattuck brought attention to the board their responsibilities and liabilities that each 
member has when using their own personal email address should a FOIA request be submitted 
for communication from or to their personal addresses.  Director Malzahn confirmed and 
suggested that it is a best practice to utilize city issued emails only in the performance of DDA 
board member duties.  The board requested Malzahn to bring back pricing information at the 
next meeting for further discussion. 

NO BOARD ACTION TAKEN  
 

11.  DIRECTORS REPORT 
Malzahn presented her written report in the meeting packet for August 2023.  Additional items 
discussed during the meeting included an update on the recently purchased trash cans that have 
been delivered, DPW will install.  Sparkles the Clown is under contract for the ice cream social event 



 

 
DDA REGULAR RE-SCHEDULED MEETING MINUTES – AUGUST 16, 2023 

PAGE 4 
 

and will provide face painting and balloon art for attendees.  She also reported on the conversation 
with Pete Barnum of the Lapeer FFA. Regarding the self-water pots.  
Farm Market Manager Report was also provided in the meeting packet. 

 
ADDED ITEM 10f.  DDA Self-Watering Pots 

Director Malzahn reported that she contacted the Lapeer Chapter of the FFA, as suggested by 
Villanueva at a previous meeting, regarding their use of the self-watering pots longer being used 
by the DDA.  The pots need to be moved from their current storage location due to the sale of 
property and if a future use is not needed the pots could be donated or sold.  The FFA is very 
interested and will find a use for them in their programming. 

MOTION by Shattuck, support by Robbins to donate the self-watering pots to the Lapeer FFA Chapter. 
All in Favor 7 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

12. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
None 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION by Docherty, support by Shattuck to adjourn the meeting at 7:11 pm 
All in Favor 7 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  
 
Next Regular DDA Board meeting date: Monday September 11, 2023, at 5:35 PM 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________ 
                                     Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 
 
DDA APPROVED:  
 
CITY COMMISSION APPROVED: 

















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 9a:  
DDA Issued Email Addresses 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DATE: September 11, 2023 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: Board member Justin Shattuck requested an agenda item be added to last 
months meeting to discuss responsibilities and liabilities with the usage of 
personal email addresses as compared with DDA issued email addresses.  
The Board requested Director Malzahn to bring back pricing options for 
creation and storing of all email communication for board members. 

 

Items Attached: Civic Clarity Proposal 
 
 
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

 

 

   
 

   
 

 

 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 





401 E ELM ST
LANSING MI  48912-1007
Phone: 517-827-6200
Fax: 517-487-0532

To:         City of Imlay
401 E. ELM ST.
LANSING MI  48912

Attn:      Christine Malzahn
Phone:  
Email:   
Fax:      

Date:                          09/06/2023
Project Name:           CITY OF IMLAY- CT4021
GB Quote #:              0244269706
Purchase Order Nbr:  
Release Nbr:              
Additional Ref#:          
Revision Nbr:              
Valid From:                 09/06/2023
Valid To:                     10/06/2023
Contact:                      CONNOR BLAKE
Email:                         connor.blake@graybar.com

Proposal
We appreciate your request and take pleasure in responding as follows

Item ItemType Quantity Supplier Catalog Nbr Description Price Unit Ext.Price

100 1 CHARGEPOINT CT4021-GW1 DUAL OUTPUT
GATEWAY
OPTION
BOLLARD UNIT

$4,048.53 1 $4,048.53

GB Part#:26377214

Ship From:Drop Ship-Factory

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
200 1 CHARGEPOINT CT4001-CCM BOLLARD

CONCRETE
MOUNTING
KIT.

$89.41 1 $89.41

GB Part#:26377218

Ship From:Drop Ship-Factory

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
300 1 CHARGEPOINT CT4000-PMGMT CT4000 POWER

MANAGEMENT
KIT.

$47.06 1 $47.06

GB Part#:26377219

Ship From:Drop Ship-Factory

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
400 1 CHARGEPOINT CPSUPPORT-AC

TIVE
INITIAL
STATION
ACTIVATION
AND CONF
SERV

$349.41 1 $349.41

GB Part#:26377192

Ship From:Drop Ship-Factory

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Notes:    * Lead time is 2-3 weeks. Freight is included. 

This equipment and associated installation charges may be financed for a low monthly payment through Graybar Financial Services (subject to credit
approval).  For more information call 1-800-241-7408 to speak with a leasing specialist.

Subject to the standard terms and conditions set forth in this document.  Unless otherwise noted,freight terms are F.O.B. shipping point prepaid and bill.
Unless noted the estimated ship date will be determined at the time of order placement.

Page 1 of 3



To:         City of Imlay
401 E. ELM ST.
LANSING MI  48912

Attn:      Christine Malzahn

Date:                          09/06/2023
Project Name:           CITY OF IMLAY- CT4021
GB Quote #:              0244269706

Proposal
We appreciate your request and take pleasure in responding as follows

Item ItemType Quantity Supplier Catalog Nbr Description Price Unit Ext.Price

500 2 CHARGEPOINT CPCLD-COMMER
CIAL-5

5YR PREPAID
COMMERCIAL
CLOUD PLAN

$1,280.00 1 $2,560.00

GB Part#:26377241

Ship From:Drop Ship-Factory

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
600 1 CHARGEPOINT CT4000-ASSUR

E5
5YR PREPAID
ASSURE PLAN

$2,040.00 1 $2,040.00

GB Part#:26377256

Ship From:Drop Ship-Factory

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

This equipment and associated installation charges may be financed for a low monthly payment through Graybar Financial Services (subject to credit
approval).  For more information call 1-800-241-7408 to speak with a leasing specialist.

Subject to the standard terms and conditions set forth in this document.  Unless otherwise noted,freight terms are F.O.B. shipping point prepaid and bill.
Unless noted the estimated ship date will be determined at the time of order placement.

Total in USD (Tax not included):     $9,134.41

This equipment and associated installation charges may be financed for a low monthly payment through Graybar Financial Services (subject to credit
approval).  For more information call 1-800-241-7408 to speak with a leasing specialist.

Subject to the standard terms and conditions set forth in this document.  Unless otherwise noted,freight terms are F.O.B. shipping point prepaid and bill.
Unless noted the estimated ship date will be determined at the time of order placement.

Page 2 of 3



To:         City of Imlay
401 E. ELM ST.
LANSING MI  48912

Attn:      Christine Malzahn

Date:                          09/06/2023
Project Name:           CITY OF IMLAY- CT4021
GB Quote #:              0244269706

Proposal
We appreciate your request and take pleasure in responding as follows

Item ItemType Quantity Supplier Catalog Nbr Description Price Unit Ext.Price

GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE

1.,,ACCEPTANCE OF ORDER; TERMINATION - Acceptance of any order issubject to credit approval and acceptance of order by Graybar ElectricCompany, Inc. ("Graybar") and, when applicable,
Graybar's suppliers. Ifcredit of the buyer of the goods or services ("Buyer") becomesunsatisfactory to Graybar, Graybar reserves the right to terminate uponnotice to Buyer and without liability to
Graybar.

2.,,PRICES AND SHIPMENTS - Unless otherwise quoted, prices for goodsshall be those in effect at time of shipment, which shall be made F.O.B.shipping point, prepaid and bill. Unless otherwise
indicated in theapplicable quotation or statement of work, prices for services shall bethose in effect at the time of completion. The contract price for goodsand or services shall be increased by the
amount of any applicabletariff, excise, fee, assessment, levy, charge or duty of any kindwhatsoever, imposed, assessed or collected by any governmental body,whether or not reflected in the costs
charged to Graybar, and Graybarmay increase its cost for goods and or services appropriately to takeinto account such increases in Graybar's costs.

3.,,RETURN OF GOODS - Credit may be allowed for goods returned withprior approval. A deduction may be made from credits issued to covercost of handling.  Returns will not be accepted for
services or anymaterial which has been modified at the request of or by Buyer.  Inaddition, no custom orders may be returned.

4.,,TAXES - Prices shown do not include sales or other taxes imposed onthe sale of goods or services. Taxes now or hereafter imposed uponsales, shipments or services will be added to the
purchase price. Buyeragrees to reimburse Graybar for any such tax or provide Graybar withacceptable tax exemption certificate.

5.,,DELAY IN DELIVERY - Graybar is not to be accountable for delays indelivery of goods or services occasioned by acts of God, failure of itssuppliers to ship or deliver on time, or other
circumstances beyondGraybar's reasonable control, including, but not limited to, sourcing,shipment or delivery issues caused by, related to or resulting fromCOVID-19 or other similar national or
global health situations. Factoryshipment or delivery dates are best estimates, and in no case shallGraybar be liable for any consequential or special damages arising fromany delay in provision of
services, shipment or delivery.

6.,,LIMITED WARRANTIES - Graybar warrants that all goods sold are freeof any security interest and will make available to Buyer alltransferable warranties (including without limitation warranties
withrespect to intellectual property infringement) made to Graybar by themanufacturer of the goods. Buyer acknowledges that the performance ofany service which alters the manufacturer provided
goods as indicated inthe statement of work may void the manufacturer's warranty. Graybarshall use the same care and skill a similarly situated provider of likeservices would exercise following
commonly accepted industry practicesin the performance of its duties under this agreement. GRAYBAR MAKES NOOTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, AND SPECIFICALLY
DISCLAIMS ALLIMPLIED WARRANTIES INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE IMPLIED WARRANTIESOF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR PURPOSE. UNLESS OTHERWISE
AGREED INWRITING BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF GRAYBAR, PRODUCTS SOLDHEREUNDER ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH (1)
ANYSAFETY APPLICATION OR THE CONTAINMENT AREA OF A NUCLEAR FACILITY, OR (2)IN A HEALTHCARE APPLICATION, WHERE THE GOODS HAVE POTENTIAL FOR
DIRECTPATIENT CONTACT OR WHERE A SIX (6) FOOT CLEARANCE FROM A PATIENT CANNOTBE MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES.

7.,,LIMITATION OF LIABILITY - Buyer's remedies under this agreement aresubject to any limitations contained in manufacturer's terms andconditions to Graybar, a copy of which will be furnished
upon writtenrequest. Furthermore, Graybar's liability shall be limited to eitherrepair or replacement of the goods, re-performance of the services, orrefund of the purchase price, all at Graybar's
option, and IN NO CASESHALL GRAYBAR BE LIABLE FOR INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, OR CONSEQUENTIALDAMAGES. In addition, claims for shortages, other than loss in transit,must be made in
writing not more than five (5) days after receipt ofshipment. Unless otherwise agreed in the applicable statement of work,acceptance of services will occur not more than five (5) days aftercompletion
of performance.

8.,,WAIVER - The failure of Graybar to insist upon the performance ofany of the terms or conditions of this agreement or to exercise anyright hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such
terms,conditions, or rights in the future, nor shall it be deemed to be awaiver of any other term, condition, or right under this agreement.

9.,,MODIFICATION OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS - These terms and conditions,and any associated statement of work, supersede all othercommunications, negotiations, and prior oral or written
statementsregarding the subject matter of these terms and conditions. No change,modification, rescission, discharge, abandonment, or waiver of theseterms and conditions shall be binding upon
Graybar unless made inwriting and signed on its behalf by a duly authorized representative ofGraybar. No conditions, usage of trade, course of dealing orperformance, understanding or agreement,
purporting to modify, vary,explain, or supplement these terms and conditions shall be bindingunless hereafter made in writing and signed by the party to be bound.Any proposed modifications or
additional terms are specifically rejectedand deemed a material alteration hereof. If this document shall bedeemed an acceptance of a prior offer by Buyer, such acceptance isexpressly conditional
upon Buyer's assent to any additional or differentterms set forth herein.

10.,,REELS - When Graybar ships returnable reels, a reel deposit may beincluded in the invoice. The Buyer should contact the nearest Graybarservice location to return reels.

11.,,CERTIFICATION - Graybar hereby certifies that these goods wereproduced in compliance with all applicable requirements of Sections 6,7, and 12 of the Fair Labor Standards Act, as amended,
and ofregulations and orders of the United States Department of Labor issuedunder Section 14 thereof. This agreement is subject to Executive Order11246, as amended, the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, as amended, theVietnam Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, E.O.13496, 29 CFR Part 471, Appendix A to Subpart A, and the correspondingregulations, to the
extent required by law. 41 CFR 60-1.4, 60-741.5, and60-250.5 are incorporated herein by reference, to the extent legallyrequired.

12.,,FOREIGN CORRUPT PRACTICES ACT - Buyer shall comply with applicablelaws and regulations relating to anti-corruption, including, withoutlimitation, (i) the United States Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act (FCPA)(15 U.S.C. §§78dd-1, et. seq.) irrespective of the place of performance,and (ii) laws and regulations implementing the Organization for EconomicCooperation and
Development's Convention on Combating Bribery of ForeignPublic Officials in International Business Transactions, the U.N.Convention Against Corruption, and the Inter-American Convention
AgainstCorruption in Buyer's country or any country where performance of thisagreement or delivery of goods will occur.

13.,,ASSIGNMENT - Buyer shall not assign its rights or delegate itsduties hereunder or any interest herein without the prior writtenconsent of Graybar, and any such assignment, without such
consent, shallbe void.

14.,,GENERAL PROVISIONS - All typographical or clerical errors made byGraybar in any quotation, acknowledgment or publication are subject tocorrection. This agreement shall be governed by
the laws of the State ofMissouri applicable to contracts to be formed and fully performed withinthe State of Missouri, without giving effect to the choice or conflictsof law provisions thereof. All suits
arising from or concerning thisagreement shall be filed in the Circuit Court of St. Louis County,Missouri, or the United States District Court for the Eastern Districtof Missouri, and no other place
unless otherwise determined in Graybar'ssole discretion. Buyer hereby irrevocably consents to the jurisdictionof such court or courts and agrees to appear in any such action uponwritten notice
thereof.

15.,,PAYMENT TERMS - Payment terms shall be as stated on Graybar'sinvoice or as otherwise mutually agreed. As a condition of the salesagreement, a monthly service charge of the lesser of
1-1/2% or themaximum permitted by law may be added to all accounts not paid by netdue date. Visa, MasterCard, American Express, and Discover credit cardsare accepted at point of purchase
only.

16.,,EXPORTING - Buyer acknowledges that this order and the performancethereof are subject to compliance with any and all applicable UnitedStates laws, regulations, or orders. Buyer agrees to
comply with allsuch laws, regulations, and orders, including, if applicable, allrequirements of the International Traffic in Arms Regulations and/or theExport Administration Act, as may be amended.
Buyer further agrees thatif the export laws are applicable, it will not disclose or re-export anytechnical data received under this order to any countries for which theUnited States government requires
an export license or other supportingdocumentation at the time of export or transfer, unless Buyer hasobtained prior written authorization from the United States Office ofExport Control or other
authority responsible for such matters.

17.,, CANCELLATION; CHANGES FOR SERVICES- Buyer may cancel or makechanges to a statement of work up to five (5) business days prior tocommencement of the work. All changes and
cancellations after such dateare subject to Graybar's prior written approval in Graybar's sole andabsolute discretion. Buyer shall pay to Graybar amounts necessary tocover cancellation, restocking
fees and other charges applicable to thecancelled goods or services including those incurred or committed to byGraybar.

Subject to the standard terms and conditions set forth in this document.  Unless otherwise noted,freight terms are F.O.B. shipping point prepaid and bill.
Unless noted the estimated ship date will be determined at the time of order placement.

Page 3 of 3











CT4000 Datasheet  

 

ChargePoint, Inc. | Copyright © 2020  2 of 7 

 

Ordering Information 
The order codes below represent specific product configurations. Other product options are available. 
Please contact ChargePoint Sales for information and order codes. 
 

Specify model number followed by the applicable code(s). 
The order code sequence is: Model-Options. Software, Services and Misc are ordered as separate line 
items.  

Hardware 
Description Order Code 

Model 1830 mm (6 ft) Single Port Bollard Mount  CT4011-GW1  

1830 mm (6 ft) Dual Port Bollard Mount  CT4021-GW1  

1830 mm (6 ft) Single Port Wall Mount  CT4013-GW1  

1830 mm (6 ft) Dual Port Wall Mount  CT4023-GW1  

2440 mm (8 ft) Dual Port Bollard Mount  CT4025-GW1  

2440 mm (8 ft) Dual Port Wall Mount  CT4027-GW1  

Included  Integral Modem – North America -GW1 

Misc Power Management Kit  
  

CT4000-PMGMT  

Bollard Concrete Mounting Kit  CT4001-CCM  

*Note: ALLL CT4000 stations include Integral Modem -GW1.  

Software & Services 
Description Order Code 

ChargePoint Commercial Service Plan  CPCLD-COMMERCIAL-n*  

ChargePoint Enterprise Plan  CPCLD-ENTERPRISE-n*  

ChargePoint Assure  CT4000-ASSUREn*  

Station Activation and Configuration  CPSUPPORT-ACTIVE  

ChargePoint Station Installation and Validation  CT4000-INSTALLVALID  

Note: All CT4000 stations require a network service plan per port.  

*Substitute n for desired years (1, 2, 3, 4 or 5 years) 

 

 

 

 



CT4000 Datasheet  

 

ChargePoint, Inc. | Copyright © 2020  3 of 7 

 

Order Code Examples 
If ordering this… …the order code is 

1830 mm (6 ft) Dual Port Bollard Networked Station with Concrete 
Mounting Kit  

CT4021-GW1  

CT4001-CCM  

ChargePoint Commercial Service Plan, 3 Year Subscription  CPCLD-COMMERCIAL-3 

ChargePoint Station Installation and Validation  CT4000-INSTALLVALID  

3 Years of Assure Coverage  CT4000-ASSURE3  

1830 mm (6 ft) Single Port Wall Mount Networked Station  CT4013-GW1  

ChargePoint Commercial Service Plan, 5 Year Subscription  CPCLD-COMMERCIAL-5  

5 Years of Assure Coverage CT4000-ASSURE5  

Station Activation and Configuration  CPSUPPORT-ACTIVE  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CT4000 Datasheet  

 

ChargePoint, Inc. | Copyright © 2020  4 of 7 

 

Architectural Drawings (Dimensions) 
 

CT4021 1830 mm (6')  CT4023 1830 mm (6')  
CT4025 2440 mm (8')  CT4027 2440 mm (8')  
Bollard  Wall Mount  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

347 mm
(13.7")

CT4023
1811 mm
(71.3")

1184 mm
(46.6")

483 mm
(19.0")

302 mm
(11.9")

347 mm
(13.7")

233 mm
(9.2")

233 mm
(9.2")

CT4021
1811 mm
(71.3")

1186 mm
(46.7")

CT4025
2426 mm

(95.5")

CT4027
2426 mm

(95.5")

470 mm
(18.5")

289 mm
(11.4")



CT4000 Datasheet  

 

ChargePoint, Inc. | Copyright © 2020  5 of 7 

 

General Specifications 
Electrical Input  

Electrical Input 

Single Port  
(AC Voltage 208 / 240V AC) 

Dual Port  
(AC Voltage 208 / 240V AC) 

Input Current Input Power 
Connection 

Required 
Service Panel 

Breaker 
Input Current Input Power 

Connection 
Required 

Service Panel 
Breaker 

Standard 30A  One 40A 
branch 
circuit  

40A dual 
pole (non-

GFCI 
type)  

30A x 2  Two 
independent 
40A branch 

circuits 

40A dual 
pole (non-

GFCI 
type) x 2 

Standard Power Share n/a n/a n/a 32A One 40A 
branch 
circuit 

40A dual 
pole (non-

GFCI 
type) 

Power Select 24A 24A One 30A 
branch 
circuit 

30A dual 
pole (non-

GFCI 
type) 

24A x 2 Two 
independent 
30A branch 

circuits 

30A dual 
pole (non-

GFCI 
type) x 2 

Power Select 24A Power 
Share 

n/a n/a n/a 24A One 30A 
branch 
circuit 

30A dual 
pole (non-

GFCI 
type) 

Power Select 16A 16A One 20A 
branch 
circuit 

20A dual 
pole (non-

GFCI 
type) 

16A x 2 Two 
independent 
20A branch 

circuits 

20A dual 
pole (non-

GFCI 
type) 

Power Select 16A Power 
Share 

n/a n/a n/a 16A One 20A 
branch 
circuit 

20A dual 
pole (non-

GFCI 
type) 

Service Panel GFCI Do not provide external GFCI as it may conflict with internal GFCI (CCID)  

Wiring – Standard 3-wire (L1, L2, Earth) 5-wire (L1, L1, L2, L2, Earth) 

Wiring – Power Share n/a 3-wire (L1, L2, Earth) 

Station Power 8 W typical (standby), 15 W maximum (operation) 

Electrical Output  

Electrical Output Single Port  
(AC Voltage 208 / 240V AC) 

Dual Port  
(AC Voltage 208 / 240V AC) 

Standard 7.2 kW (240V AC @ 30A)  7.2 kW (240V AC @ 30A) x 2  

Standard Power Share n/a 7.2 kW (240V AC @ 30A) x 1  

or 

 3.8 kW (240V AC @ 16A) x 2  



CT4000 Datasheet  

 

ChargePoint, Inc. | Copyright © 2020  6 of 7 

 

Power Select 24A 5.8 kW (240V AC @ 24A)  5.8 kW (240V AC @ 24A) x 2  

Power Select 24A Power Share n/a 5.8 kW (240V AC @ 24A) x 1  

Or 

 2.9 kW (240V AC @ 12A) x 2  

Power Select 16A 3.8 kW (240V AC @ 16A)  3.8 kW (240V AC @ 16A) x 2  

Power Select 16A Power Share n/a 3.8 kW (240V AC @ 16A) x 1  

Or 

1.9 kW (240V AC @ 8A) x 2 

Functional Interfaces  

 Single Port  
(AC Voltage 208 / 240V AC) 

Dual Port  
(AC Voltage 208 / 240V AC) 

Connector Types SAE J1772TM  SAE J1772TM x 2  

 

Cable Length — 1.8 m (6 ft) 
Cable Management 

5.5 m (18 ft)  5.5 m (18 ft) x 2  

Cable Length — 2.4 m (8 ft) 
Cable Management 

n/a 7 m (23 ft)  

Overhead Cable Management 
System 

Yes 

LCD Display 145 mm (5.7 in) full color, 640 x 480, 30 fps full motion video, active matrix, 
UV protected  

Card Reader ISO 15693, ISO 14443, NFC  

Locking Holster Yes Yes x 2 

 

Safety and Connectivity Features  

Ground Fault Detection 20 mA CCID with auto retry  

Open Safety Ground Detection Continuously monitors presence of safety (green wire) ground connection  

Plug-Out Detection Power terminated per SAE J1772TM specifications  

Power Measurement Accuracy +/- 2% from 2% to full scale (30A) 

Power Report/Store Interval 15 minute, aligned to hour. Vehicle to grid connected and responsive to 
TOU signals 

Local Area Network 2.4 GHz WiFi (802.11 b/g/n)  

Wide Area Network LTE Category 4  

 



CT4000 Datasheet  

 

ChargePoint, Inc. | Copyright © 2020  7 of 7 

 

Safety and Operational Ratings  

Station Enclosure Rating Type 3R per UL 50E  

Safety and Compliance UL and cUL listed; complies with UL 2594, UL 2231-1, UL 2231-2, and 
NEC Article 625  

Station Surge Protection 6 kV @ 3,000A. In geographic areas subject to frequent thunder storms, 
supplemental surge protection at the service panel is recommended.  

EMC Compliance FCC Part 15 Class A  

Operating Temperature -40°C to 50°C (-40°F to 122°F)  

Non-Operating Temperature -40°C to 60°C (-40°F to 140°F)  

Terminal Block Temperature 
Rating 

105°C (221°F) 

Operating Humidity Up to 85% @ 50°C (122°F) non-condensing  

Non-Operating Humidity Up to 95% @ 50°C (122°F) non-condensing  

Network All stations include integral LTE modem and will be automatically 
configured to operate as gateway or non-gateway as needed 

ChargePoint, Inc. reserves the right to alter product offerings and specifications at any time without notice, and is not 
responsible for typographical or graphical errors that may appear in this document 

 

 

 

 ChargePoint, Inc.  
240 East Hacienda Avenue 
Campbell, CA 95008-6617 USA 

+1.408.841.4500 or 
+1.877.370.3802 US and Canada toll-free 

chargepoint.com 

 

Contact Us 

Visit chargepoint.com 

Call +1.408.705.1992 

Email sales@chargepoint.com 

 Copyright © 2020 ChargePoint, Inc. All rights reserved. CHARGEPOINT is a U.S. registered 
trademark/service mark, and an EU registered logo mark of ChargePoint, Inc. All other products or services 
mentioned are the trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks of their 
respective owners. 5 August 2020. 

 

                                                        Listed by Underwriters Laboratories Inc.       

 

 

























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10c:  
Professional Services – Community Assessment Proposals 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DATE: September 11, 2023 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: The DDA issued an RFP seeking proposals for Professional Services to assist in the 
development of a focused strategic development plan for the DDA District on 
August 7, 2023.  A bid opening was held at noon on September 6th with two 
submissions received. 

 

Items Attached: Rowe Professionals Proposal  
 (Strategic Plan = $6,700, Survey = $900, 1 Open House Meeting $1,200) 
 
 Giffels Webster Proposal 
 (Where We Are = $10,880, Market Assessment = $5,620,  
 Strategic Plan + 2 Meetings $9,380) 
 
 
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommended   Motion to retain the services of __________________ for the purpose of 
Motion:    conducting a strategic development plan in the amount of _____________. 
   
 

 



























































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 















































Director’s Report – September 2023 
Promotions 

• On-going Social media postings and engagement with downtown merchants on Facebook. 
 

@150 Bancroft 
• Hannah House has officially vacated the incubator space.  The keys were returned on August 31st and the I 

conducted a visual inspection of the interior. 
• Received a new application to lease the space to Collection Connection and online auction house. 

 
Farmer’s Market 

• Continue to assist Patti Biolchini with market operations and troubleshooting.   
 

Economic Development 
• Continue to work with city administration for the Sage Creek Winery business. 
• Submitted a LEO Community Center Pavilion grant. 

 
Place Making/Streetscape 

• New trash receptacles have been placed downtown. 
• Conducted bid opening for the Professional Services RFP. 

 
Billboard:  

• Installation for Woods N Waters billboard was completed.   
• Artwork for Rotary was designed for Octoberfest billboard.   
• Artwork for additional Rotary billboard was designed for club photo.  Payment of extra $325 is receipted.  

 
Meetings and Other:   

• Organized and monitored concert in the park – Swing Shift Orchestra, Bob Marshall Band/Ice Cream Social 
• Attended Monthly Department Head Meeting. 
• Attended the tabletop emergency training exercise for the planned CN live exercise being planned for next 

spring. 
• Attended online teams meeting with BidNet Direct.  Working to setup Imlay City as a registered municipal 

purchaser for the MITN purchasing Group 
• Met with DPW Supervisor and City Manager to discuss the brick paver removal project 
• Attended Rotary Club weekly meetings. 
• Processed invoices, check requests, and mailed payments. 
• Made updates to the DDA website for current meeting information  
• Prepared meeting agendas, action item sheets, board packets for both the Regular meeting. 
• Attended the September 5th city commission meeting, provided overview of the grant and requested a 

resolution of support. 
 

 
It is a continued pleasure to serve the Imlay City Downtown Development Authority businesses and community as your 
Executive Director.  
 
 
Next DDA Board Meeting – Monday, October 9, 2023      



1

Christine Malzahn

From: Christine Malzahn <ddadirector@imlaycity.org>
Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 11:58 AM
To: jkempf@imlaycity.org; justin@happylittlequiltshop.com; kellyspetsalon@outlook.com; 

ndocherty@internationalte.com; steve@steverobbins.net; emailstu430@gmail.com; Tri-City Times; 
walter.bargen@choiceone.com; 'ddapromotions@imlaycity.org'

Subject: Week of August 21 Update
Attachments: Community Center Pavillion Narrative.docx; 2023.08.16 DRAFT Meeting Minutes.docx

Happy Friday Board Members, 
 
Here is a quick recap of this week’s acƟviƟes. 
 
AƩached is my draŌ of meeƟng minutes from last Wednesday’s re-scheduled meeƟng.  If you see any errors that I need 
to fix, kindly let me know asap. 
 
The last summer concert and ice cream social on Tuesday was for the most part successful.  I am concerned about 
aƩendance at these events and am curious why the community is not engaging.  If not for the concert aƩendees the ice 
cream social would have had only 10-12 aƩendees, however those who were present did enjoy the event overall. 
 
Wednesday morning, I aƩended the table top emergency response exercise for the rail crossing at the fire hall.  This was 
very informaƟve and two key take aways are our need to have a beƩer contact list with the property/business owners 
so that communicaƟon would not be hampered, also the need for one common administrator on ALL city social media 
pages, so that in the event of an emergency, direcƟves could be pushed with a common narraƟve.  This means that our 
social media policy needs an update and a new push for adopƟon by the city is necessary. 
 
Thursday, I aƩended the Lapeer Economic Club luncheon for educaƟon on cyber security issues.  When the meeƟng 
handouts are sent to the aƩendees, I will share because they contain some very useful Ɵps that we could all use both in 
business and personally in our home networks.  I also met with DPW Supervisor Priehs to look at the old DPW site and 
determine what to do with items leŌ there that are DDA owned.  Aside from the planters (which I will contact FFA soon 
to pick up) the only other things leŌ are the large mural painƟngs and the metal sculpture arch.  I will plan to reach out 
to Dana Walker to beƩer understand our responsibility with those art pieces.  Paƫ reported that market aƩendance was 
down for the day – perhaps this is due to the high heat temps but overall the market was full with 17 vendors aƩending 
including the new pet food vendor. 
 
Lastly, I am feverishly working on the community center grant applicaƟon.  AƩached is a word document that has my 
answers to the app quesƟons that I have developed so far.  If anyone is interested in proof-reading or offering 
suggesƟons to the areas that I am struggling with by all means I’m listening.  I was able to have a teams meeƟngs with 
the planners from Spicer yesterday aŌernoon and they are working on the architectural renderings, budgeƟng and 
implementaƟon porƟons of the grant.  Once I finish this email composiƟon and return the ice cream freezer lent to us 
from Botanas, I’ll be returning my aƩenƟon to that grant app. 
 
Have a safe and relaxing weekend! 
 

��������	
������

DDA ExecuƟve Director 
City of Imlay City 
150 North Main Street 



1

Christine Malzahn

From: Christine Malzahn <ddadirector@imlaycity.org>
Sent: Friday, September 1, 2023 12:22 PM
To: jkempf@imlaycity.org; justin@happylittlequiltshop.com; kellyspetsalon@outlook.com; 

ndocherty@internationalte.com; steve@steverobbins.net; emailstu430@gmail.com; Tri-City Times; 
walter.bargen@choiceone.com; 'ddapromotions@imlaycity.org'

Subject: Week of August 28th update
Attachments: 2023.09.11 Agenda.doc

Good Friday AŌernoon! 
 
My weekly email won’t be long today – just a few items to menƟon.   
 
Luckily the grant submission deadline was pushed back a week due to the power outages and storms that terrorized the 
state.  The grant app is now due Sept 7th @ 5:00pm.  I am diligently working with the architect and planning team at 
Spicer to meet the grant app requirements.  While they work on the budget and architectural concept, I am sƟll re-
working the narraƟves based on Spicer’s recommendaƟons and review.  I have requested to be place on the City 
Commission agenda for Tuesday’s meeƟng and will present my draŌ resoluƟon of support and an overview of the 
proposed project to them. 
 
Market day was a huge success this week as reported by Paƫ –record sales numbers from the vendors… being indoors 
conƟnues to be a benefit, even though the weather was terrific yesterday.  Please… if you do not already follow our 
farmers market Facebook page (imlay city farmers market) follow, like and share share share Paƫ’s post!  Signs can only 
grab aƩenƟon from the passersby – we need to spread awareness of the market and aƩract shoppers through 
everyone’s personal networks! 
 
Your board packets are being compiled and you will get them via email next Thursday.  The draŌ agenda is aƩached.  
 
Enjoy the long holiday weekend, stay cool and safe! 
 

��������	
������

DDA ExecuƟve Director 
City of Imlay City 
150 North Main Street 
Imlay City, Michigan 48444 
Office: 810-724-2135 
Email: ddadirector@imlaycity.org 
 



1

Christine Malzahn

From: ddapromotions@imlaycity.org
Sent: Monday, September 4, 2023 7:10 PM
To: Christine Malzahn
Subject: August Farmers Market update

  
August Farmers Market Update: 
  
I am still utilizing the old firehall for the farmers market and will continue to do so until the sale to Sagecreek 
goes through. Since we have been using the firehall the number of vendor cancellations each week , for the most 
part, is zero. Having a roof over our heads and not having to worry about product getting wet, or too hot, makes 
the market so much more enjoyable for everyone. 
  
Attendance has gone down this month from 300, on average, per market in July, to 250 per market in August. 
Since I have a great variety of vendors and marketing has been steady, I would have to point to rainy weather and 
storms as the culprit. We experienced those conditions for about 3 markets out of the 5 for the month. Also, the 
start of the school year and a change in schedules probably didn't help. 
  
We had 3 new vendors this month and 2 new food trucks that I added to the vendor rotation. As always, we need 
great vendors to attract customers but we need customers to make these great vendors stay. With the lower 
numbers for the month I have had a couple of vendors regrettably, not want to come back.  
  
I have tried to market the food trucks more this month to the businesses in and around Imlay City. The good news 
is that sales numbers for the food trucks remain at July levels, but sadly, these people are not walking around the 
market and adding to the sales numbers for any of my vendors.  I continue to look for ways to change this dynamic. 
  
We have had a full house of vendors each week and  I am constantly looking for new ones to add to the 
mix.  However, this time of year has a lot of festivals which mean that many vendors attend those instead because 
of higher sales numbers. 
  
Here's hoping for a booming September market, 
  
  
Patti Biolchini 
Farm Market Manager 
City of Imlay City 
810-724-2135 
ddapromotions@imlaycity.org 


	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Meeting september 11, 2023
	2023.09.11 Agenda.pdf
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Meeting september 11, 2023

	2023.09.11 Agenda.pdf
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Meeting september 11, 2023

	ADP55BE.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Meeting september 11, 2023

	Giffels Webster.pdf
	20230906122904174_0001
	20230906122904174_0002
	20230906122904174_0003
	20230906122904174_0004
	20230906122904174_0005
	20230906122904174_0006
	20230906122904174_0007
	20230906122904174_0008
	20230906122904174_0009
	20230906122904174_0010

	Rowe Professionals.pdf
	20230906122513602_0001
	20230906122513602_0002
	20230906122513602_0003
	20230906122513602_0004

	ADP42F6.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Meeting september 11, 2023




